
DECEMBER  2022 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PACKET

K E N T  D I S T R I C T
L I B R A R Y

1



DRAFT 

* Requires Action
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center, 814 West River Drive, Comstock Park, MI 49321 or via 

teleconference.  

 DATE & TIME 

Thursday, December 15, 2022, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. CONSENT AGENDA*

A. Approval of Agenda

B. Approval of Minutes: November 17, 2021

4. FINANCE REPORTS – November 2022*

5. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – November 2022

6. NEW BUSINESS

A. 2022 KDL Year in Review
B. Policy Manual – Section 6: Personnel* First Reading 
C. Issue Analysis: Live Scanning Wand* First Reading 

D. Resolution: Second Budget Amendment* Roll Call Vote 
E. 2023 Election of Officers*
F. 2023 Trustee Board Assignments*

7. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS**

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

10. MEETING DATES

Next Meeting - Thursday, January 19, 2023- KDL Service & Meeting Center, 4:30 PM or via teleconference.

11. CLOSED SESSION – Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation Roll Call Vote 

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

13. ADJOURNMENT*



DRAFT 

   
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Drive NE, Comstock Park, MI 

49321 and via teleconference.  

 DATE + TIME  

Thursday, October 17, 2022, at 7:00 PM. 

BOARD PRESENT: Shirley Bruursema (teleconference), Peter Dykhuis (teleconference), Andrew 
Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-Watts, Nicole Lintemuth, Charles Myers and Penny Weller. 

 

BOARD ABSENT: Tom Noreen  

 
STAFF PRESENT: Jaci Cooper, Jennifer DeVault, Randy Goble, Kim Lindsay, Kelaine Mish 

(teleconference), Elvia Myers, Kurt Stevens, Lance Werner, Emily Whalen 
(teleconference) and Penni Zurgable (teleconference).  

 

GUESTS PRESENT: Mike Zurgable (teleconference)  
 

.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Myers called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: October 27, 2022 

C. Approval of 2023 Budget Review: October 27, 2022  

D. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: October 11, 2022 

E. Request for late closure of the Grandville Branch at 9:00 PM on Saturday, December 3, 

2022, to accommodate the Tinsels, Trees and Treasures event in the City of Grandville. 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Gilreath- Watts.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING – 2023 Budget Review  

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to open discussion for the public hearing at 7:07 PM.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Gilreath-Watts.  
Ms. Bruursema – Yes  Mr. Dykhuis – Yes  Mr. Erlewein – Yes  Ms. Lintemuth – Yes  
Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Yes Mr. Myers – Yes Mr. Noreen – N/A Ms. Weller – Yes  

3



DRAFT 

   
 

 

RESULT: Motion carried 7-0. 

 

There were no public comments.  

 

Motion: Ms. Lintemuth moved to close the public hearing and reconvene the regular Board 

meeting at 7:12 PM.  

Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein.   

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

5. FINANCE REPORTS – October 2022* 

The Interim Director of Finance gave a brief overview of the year-to-date financials:  

• Cash appears to be down from last year, at $15.94M as compared to $17.45M in 2021.  

• KDL has received $27.3M or 98% of budgeted annual revenue and has $23.9M or 76.3% 

of budgeted expenditures remaining.   

• The largest checks written for the month of October were $116K to Priority Health for 
Employee Health Insurance, $59K to IP Consulting for the monthly colocation fee and 
$54K to Everstream Holding for KDL-wide fiber services.  

The Board asked questions and staff responded.  
 
Motion: Ms. Weller moved to receive and file the October 2022 finance reports as 

presented. 

Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein.   

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – October 2022 

Executive Director Lance Werner requested that a brief department overview be given:  

• IT Director Kurt Stevens explained the process that is being undertaken by the 
department regarding RFID Wands, which will be presented at a later date. 

• IT Director Kurt Stevens will work with the Board of Trustees on Phishing Training.  

The Board asked questions and staff responded. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Executive Director’s Evaluation Process  
Motion: Ms. Weller moved to have a closed session at the Board of Trustees December 

15, 2022, meeting for the Executive Director’s Evaluation.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Lintemuth.   

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

B. WonderKnook Brief Update 

Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper shared the progress of the new WonderKnook 

play spaces systemwide.  

 

4



DRAFT 

   
 

C. 2023 Strategic Initiatives*  

Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Copper gave a brief description of the 2023 Strategic 
Initiatives.   

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve the 2023 Strategic Initiatives as presented.  
Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein. 

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

D. Resolution: Health Insurance Funding* 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve the Health Insurance Funding as presented.  
Support: Supported by Mr. Erlewein. 
Ms. Bruursema – Yes  Mr. Dykhuis – Yes  Mr. Erlewein – Yes  Ms. Lintemuth – Yes  
Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Yes Mr. Myers – Yes Mr. Noreen – N/A Ms. Weller – Yes  

RESULT: Motion carried 7-0.  
 

E. Resolution: Approval of the 2023 Budget Review* 

Motion: Mr. Erlewein moved to approve the 2023 Budget Review as presented.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.  
Ms. Bruursema – Yes  Mr. Dykhuis – Yes  Mr. Erlewein – Yes  Ms. Lintemuth – Yes  
Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Yes Mr. Myers – Yes Mr. Noreen – N/A Ms. Weller – Yes  

RESULT: Motion carried 7-0.  

 

8. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None.  

 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – None.  

 

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

Ms. Bruursema – Ms. Bruursema had a successful outcome with the millage she assisted and 

had a fabulous time at the Alliance of Friends luncheon. She gives huge kudos to Volunteer 

Coordinator Deb Schultz.  

 

Mr. Erlewein – No comment given. 

 

Mr. Dykhuis – No comment given. 

 

Ms. Gilreath-Watts – No comment given. 

 

Ms. Lintemuth – No comment given. 

 

Mr. Myers – No comment given. 

 

Mr. Noreen – Absent. 

 

Ms. Weller – No comment given. 

 

5



DRAFT 

   
 

11. MEETING DATES 

Regular Meeting: Thursday, December 15, 2022, – Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center 

and via teleconference, 4:30 PM. 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved for adjournment at 7:41 PM.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Lintemuth.  

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

 

  

 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL FOR DISTRIBUTION 

 

 

6



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended November 30

2022 2021

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.100% $1,478,055.43 0.000% $1,276,810.24

1.004% $961,797.28 0.009% $1,965,184.71

1.834% $56,194.74 0.681% $55,858.58

$11,502,564.00 $11,920,523.00

$13,998,611.45 $15,218,376.53

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 8.39%

Investment Account

12.91%

Pooled Funds 

.37%

Atlanta Capital

78.33%  

Checking Account

10.56%     

Investment Account

6.87%

Pooled Funds

.40%

Atlanta Capital 

82.17%  

7



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended November 30

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2021 Actual 2021 YTD Revenues 100.1%

2022 Actual 2022 YTD Revenues 98.7%

2022 Budgeted

2021 YTD Expenditures 80.9%

Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures 83.0%

2021 Actual

2022 Actual

2022 Budgeted 31,255,897$                              

27,039,683$                              

27,506,169$                              

27,862,051$                              

24,639,975$                              

25,946,233$                              

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

2021
Actual

2022
Actual

2022
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

2021

Actual

2022

Actual

2022

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

2021 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Revenues 2021 YTD Expenditures 2022 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



Both the East Grand Rapids Branch and the Amy Van Andel Library know how to kick off the holiday season! The

City of East Grand Rapids had a tree-lighting event that drew in the entire community. Branch Librarian Sarah

Yoder and Branch Outreach and Programming Specialist Monica Walen were in the middle with an outdoor craft

supported by the F the Friends of the Library. In Ada, the entire downtown area is connected to the Tinsel Treats

and Trolley event. The library was one of the most popular stops with sled dogs, a craft, and the Friends of the

Library Booksale. Thanks to Youth Librarian Liz Wierenga, Assistant Branch Librarian Sarah Powers, and Ms.

Walen for the efforts to welcome over 1,400 people into the library! 

Wrapping up 2022 it’s important to look back at all that has been accomplished! Year to date the Amy Van Andel

Library has increased visitor counts by 32% and increased active cardholders by 19.2% compared to 2021. East

Grand Rapids has increased visitor counts by 51.3% and active cardholders by 3%. The Regional Managers are

very proud of the region’s efforts and grateful that the impact on the community continues to expand! 

Pictured below: The beautiful window painting at the Amy Vandel Library was done by Assistant Branch

Librarians Rebecca Maupin and Julia Cook. Along with  fun in the cold during the City of East Grand Rapids tree

lighting. 

Director's Report
NOVEMBER  2022

EAST GRAND RAPIDS BRANCH + AMY VAN ANDEL LIBRARY

21



Both the Wyoming and Kelloggsville branches are looking forward to visits from live reindeer this month. The

Wyoming Branch has been preparing for the annual winter craft program and a gingerbread decorating program.

Both programs are popular with patrons, and staff members anticipate a large attendance. There is a winter

themed scavenger hunt in the youth area at the Wyoming Branch and both teams are excited about the new

WonderKnook furnishings. Children have been enjoying tramping over and crawling under the bridge at the

Wyoming branch. Staff are looking forward to the branches’ annual joint holiday celebration.

The Wyoming Branch is one of four branches that is piloting an FE Technologies Wand. It is a time-saver for staff,

keeping the collection up-to-date, and getting returned items into patrons' hands sooner.

Staff are also testing return chutes for both the outside and inside returns for two months starting December 7.

Staff will run these through many scenarios to ensure they are accurate for checking in patrons’ returns, verifying

the software is able to identify hold items and testing the capability of staff being alerted to how many items have

been returned on days that the branch is closed (helping us to know if staff need to come and when). 

The Kentwood Branch partnered with the City of Kentwood for the annual Tree Lighting Ceremony on

December 1st. This was a festive time that included a parade, activities, and of course the lighting of the giant

tree in front of the library! Staff had been busy decorating the inside of the library in preparation for the event

and for the enjoyment of patrons throughout the holiday season. 

Both the Kentwood and the Gaines Township branches are serving as drop-off locations for Toys for Tots.

Community members and library patrons have donated many gifts thus far. Both locations needed to arrange

early pick-ups of gifts to make room for additional donations! Staff at both branches are increasingly excited

about the pending arrival of the WonderKnook play spaces! The staff looks forward to the branches offering

something new and fun for young patrons to close out the year.

The Kentwood Branch has seen an influx of food donations for the Little Free Pantry. The amazing staff at the

Cascade Branch heard about the need and took it upon themselves to donate food. It was wonderful to see the

generosity of KDL staff, especially approaching the holiday season.

GAINES + KENTWOOD

KELLOGGSVILLE + WYOMING

22



The Krause, Nelson, and Spencer Branches are being transformed into winter wonderlands with great seasonal

decorations and displays at each branch. These beautiful decorations have been created by talented branch staff

in order to share the joy and spirit of the season with patrons.

The Krause, Nelson, and Spencer Branches are all drop-off locations for Toys for Tots again this year. Staff have

been witnessing the generosity of the communities with the number of donations coming in. The Spencer Branch

is also helping the Friends of the Library with its annual donation drive for personal items for area school students.

The staff of Krause, Nelson, and Spencer Branches are participating in ‘spirit days’ from December 12-23. Each day

has a suggested theme for how to dress (i.e. plaid, snowmen, festive sweaters, things that jingle and sparkle, etc.)

The amazing Krause Youth Branch Librarian Shannon Vanderhyde does a fabulous job of putting together this fun

event for coworkers---and this year staff are inviting patrons to join in! Staff are excited to see how many patrons

will come into the branch dressed to join in the fun!

KRAUSE MEMORIAL, NELSON + SPENCER 

23



In-person programming numbers continue to rise. Compared to November 2021, KDL offered 20% more in-

person programs and had a 10% increase in attendance.  

Kent District Library offers Glow-in-the-Dark Parties across the county. The Youth Programming workgroup,

led by Branch and Outreach Programming Specialists Ty Papke and Alyson Cryderman, created this engaging and

fun system-wide program that attracted large numbers of attendees at many of the branches. 

 

   

  

Kent District Library expands Mama Bear & Baby Cubs Support Group to five branches. This maternal support

group offers a space for young mothers and their children to play, bond, share stories and support one another.

The Wyoming Branch Youth Librarian Abby Black launched this program in 2019. Earlier this year, Ms. Black

trained staff from other branches so that they too could facilitate this program in other KDL branches. This is a

great example of piloting a new idea, evaluating success and expanding that success to widen the impact. 

After 37 years, Kris Vogelar retires from KDL in January 2023. Branch Outreach and Programming Specialist

Kris Vogelar has impacted innumerable staff and patrons through her programs, mentorship and community

partnerships. Ms. Vogelar has been a leader  internally developing programs like Ruff Readers, A+ Partners,

Community Reads and Summer Wonder. KDL's utmost appreciation and esteem go to Ms. Vogelar with the start of

a new chapter. 

 PROGRAMMING 

24



 OUTREACH 

BOOKMOBILE
11/1/2022 KDL Service Point Summit
11/1/2022 Kent City Head Start Storytime
11/1/2022 Godfrey Lee Community Visit
11/1/2022 Godfrey Lee Food Distribution 
11/2/2022 KDL Service Point Summit
11/2/2022 Ideal Park Christin Reformed Church food
distribution
11/3/2022 West Elementary 
11/3/2022 KDL Service Point Summit
11/7/2022 La Escuelita Storytime
11/9/2022 Essential Needs Task Force Food & Nutrition
Coalition
11/9/2022 Essential Needs Task Force Digital Initiatives
meeting
11/9/2022 Bridgeway Shelter
11/9/2022 Streams of Hope Community Visit
11/10/2022 Essential Needs Task Force Resource
Navigation training: Utilities Assistance
11/11/2022 OUT Team @ Center for Creative Land
Recycling Expo 
11/11/2022 Men of Color Read facilitation
11/14/2022 La Escuelita Storytime
11/15/2022 Godrey Lee Early Childhood Center
Community Visit
11/15/2022 YALSA Workshop: Transforming Teen
Services
11/16/2022 Explorer Elementary Visit
11/16/2022 Wimee @ the Griffins' Day game
11/16/2022 Parkview CLST Food Distribution meeting
11/21/2022 La Escuelita Storytime
11/22/2022 Godfrey Lee Early Childhood Center
Community Visit

Bookmobile Operator Kelaine Mish noticed that a
5th-grade student picked up a couple of graphic
novels and placed them back but when the
student noticed the foreign language picture
books, the student's face completely lit up with
joy. The student grabbed a book in Farsi and gave
it a hug  with so much excitement stating "This is
my home language." 

School Partnership 
54.1%

Community Events
28.3%

Early Literacy 
12.8%

Senior Services 
4.7%

25



The most recent graduate Linda Clay received her certificate at the Wyoming
Branch. Her awesome story of self-determination and hard work is incredible. 
Congratulations to Linda! May she continue to dream and achieve. 
The Career Online High School Diploma program has nine more scholarships that
are hopefully going to be assigned to beneficiaries by the end of this year. 

CEDAR SPRINGS LIBRARY CAREER FAIR 
The Cedar Springs Public Schools (CSPS) district encompasses portions of
Nelson, Algoma and Courtland Township as well as the city of Cedar Springs
and Solon Twp. There are also many school-of-choice students from Tyrone
Township and Oakfield Twp. Roughly 50% of the student population of CSPS
lives within a KDL service area. As requested by Tyrone Township and Nelson
Township branches, Outreach and Community Engagement partnered with
Cedar Spring Public Library on a career fair to promote the library as a career
choice. The team also attended a discussion with the schools on how to meet
the needs of all students, support the school system, share library services and
collections with teachers, and encourage communication with staff about
needs in this area. 

LATINA CONNECT INTERPRETATION
During the Latina Connect, a woman-based ethnic-specific leadership group
hosted and sponsored by the Grand Rapids Chamber of Commerce, the
Outreach and Engagement team provided equipment used to facilitate
communication through a language interpreter. The equipment is managed
by the Community Engagement team and staff training is scheduled for 2023.
For more information contact outreach@kdl.org.

In December of 2017, KDL started delivering books inside terminals A and B of the
Gerald R. Ford International Airport. Since then, it has developed a sustainable model
that includes a partnership with Experience GR and utilizing the Same Day Delivery to
safely and consistently get the shelves serviced. This is one of the most beloved KDL
Free Libraries in Kent County and it has received lots of comments and attention.
Here's a recent comment received via Patron's Services: "Hi! Just wanted to say thank
you for the little free library at the airport! This is so nice! I’d much rather read to my
son while waiting versus have him on a device, and having “new” books that I don’t
have to pack, are awesome! Thank you again!" - Denise B

GERALD R. FORD INTERNATIONS AIRPORT FREE LIBRARY 

CAREER ONLINE HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA

26



CATHERINE GUTOWSKI -- Alto Township
nominated by Phillip Sawyer

Helpful

For..."Cathy has been the "Mother Hen" of our branch with her amazing nurturing skills. She has fed us and

trained us and encouraged us. She is the glue that binds us all together and has a great ability to connect to

patrons. Many of whom are disappointed to her that "it's Cathy's day off" and they have to talk to us

instead. She has been so generous to step in and help with the transitions of staff changes. Thank you,

Cathy."

KATHY PLUYMEERRT -- Collection Services
nominated by Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz

Authentic

For..."Kathy and Terri went above and beyond today by working on an extra delivery shift to help get as

much delivery out to the branches as possible before the holiday. This proactive and positive approach

makes a difference for our staff and patrons."

nominated by Megan Versluis

Helpful

For..."Due to the weather and delivery driver error, we were behind in delivery the Tuesday before

Thanksgiving. Kathy and Terri took it upon themselves to do an unprompted afternoon shift in delivery to

help us catch up."

Katie Kudos 
WINNERS FOR NOVEMBER 2022

27



SHELBY TOREN -- Caledonia Township
nominated by Emily Dao

Authentic

For..."Shelby is fantastic at looking at a problem and coming up with multiple solutions to solve it. She's

also great to bounce ideas off of as she's not afraid to play Devil's Advocate and is a visionary. We are

blessed to have her at CAL!"

nominated by Emma Hendrian

Authentic

For..."Everyone at the Caledonia Branch exemplifies going further for service. Every day I work, I witness

someone (or multiple someone's) going the extra mile for a patron and working their hardest to make sure

that the patron leaves with a smile and at least one they need."

nominated by Ashley Smolinski

Courageous

For..."Thank you for being a positive leader and influence for the Moonshot Champions this year and during

your operationalization meeting too! So thankful for you!"

nominated by Emily Dao

Courageous

For..."Shelby has the strength of character to always do what is right. She takes ownership of tasks, keeps

other staff members informed, and is willing to help when a problem arises. She is a team member we are

honored to have!"

nominated by Audrey Barker

Positive

For..."Shelby organized a pumpkin decorating contest for our branch where the patrons voted for their

favorites. This was an amazing way to bring the team together, including patrons, and just generally

spread some joy around. The world needs more Shelby's.  �"

Katie Kudos 
WINNERS FOR NOVEMBER 2022

28



Upcoming Meetings
+ Dates of Interest

Upcoming Meetings 

 
Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, January 19,  2023
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, February 16, 2023
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, March 16, 2023
4:30 PM 
KDL Amy Van Andel Library

Dates of Interest
KDL Pension Meeting 

February 15, 2023

1:00 PM 

KDL Service + Meeting Center

29



NEW
!

At risk—budget, scope, timelineOn track

Paused/cancelled—being redefined or stopped

NOVEMBER�2022

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Projects in approval queue

Declined

New projects approved

13
2

0
Active Approved

Projects
Completed since 01/22

Late (At Risk)

On Time

18

3

710

NEW
!

This project, a 2023 strategic initiative, will bring a much-needed facelift to 1KB4K, the beloved early lit
reading program. As part of a successful revamp, team members will focus on creating better cohesion
between 1KB4K branding and other reading/youth programs at the library, improving the quality of
prizes and tracking pages, updating tracking options for caregivers with a digital component through
Beanstack, and other deliverables.

Project Lead: Dawn Heerspink
Status: On track

Approval Date: 11.23.22
Due Date: 09.30.23

1,000�Books�Before�Kindergarten�(1KB4K)�Revamp

With the successful implementation of the Adult, Teen and Youth KDL CORE Collections, this project will
similarly deliver the next exciting installment in the series: Picture Books. Based on KDL circulation and
local popularity, this will be a dynamic list of non-digital books that will be reviewed and updated semi-
annually, thereby helping to increase circulation and aid in picture book display creation. It will also
provide new parents and caregivers with passive materials advisory.

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 11.23.22
Due Date: 05.31.23

Picture�Book�CORE�Collection

The library's first-ever KDL Pet Calendar is now available at branches and on the (new!) KDL Online
Store (https://shopkdl.org/). With some of Kent County's most adorable pets featured for each monthly
spread, the calendar is provided as a “thank you” for donations of $20 or more and will be available
through December 31. Though most deliverables of this project are complete, the initial deadline of
October 31 has been extended in order to further track and gather success metrics through the end of
the year.

Project Lead: Randy Goble (NEW!)
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 08.03.22
Due Date: new due date of 01.15.23

Annual�Pet�Calendar

30

https://shopkdl.org/


Project Lead: Sara Proaño
Status: Complete

Approval Date: 04.27.22
Due Date: 10.31.22

This project established partnerships between the library and various healthcare partners in the area
(Great Start Collaborative, St. Mary’s Foundation, Kent County Health department, etc.) to provide early
lit resources to qualifying West Michigan families, inviting them into the library space at a time when
they may need to feel more support and connection with community resources than ever before. After a
successful launch and excellent feedback, the Community Engagement team looks forward to
continuing with this great initiative in the future, as well as continuing to seek additional funding.

Books�for�Newborns

Project Lead: Liz Guarino-Kozlowicz
Status: Complete

Approval Date: 02.02.22
Due Date: new due date 09.30.22

This project reviewed KDL's existing Collection Development policy regarding purchasing while further
defining the library’s stance on patron purchase requests and other nuances related to being a popular
materials collection. As part of the project’s deliverables, a new webpage has been created on KDL,
which patrons and staff can both reference: www.kdl.org/collections. Staff alaso received
comprehensive training on our colelction which will be rolled into onboarding for future hires. Thank
you to team members Liz Guarino, Ali Kuchta, Tammy Schneider, Johanna Boyle, Samantha Hodge,
Marie Mulder, Sheri Glon, Penni Zurgable, Amber Hath and Ashten VanderPloeg for all of their hard work
and thank you to all of the wonderful staff at KDL for embracing change and serving patrons well.

Circulation�Moonshot:�Collection�Purchasing�Philosophy

Project Lead: Jared Seigel + Shelby Toren
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 06.30.21
Due Date: new due date 12.31.22

Project Sponsor Jaci Cooper has been working with Project Leads Shelby Toren and Jared Seigel and
the managers on how to operationalize this project. In the past month, the team has been hard at work
creating a "Displays and Merchandising Manual" that all branches can reference and add to in order to
create consistency and clarity across the board. They also facilitated a Design Think with Moonshot
"Champions" (representatives from each branch) to ensure complete adoption of merchandising
standards. Merchandising Champions (renamed to be future-focused and not tied to this specific set of
projects) will receive training on the Data Dashboard in December (the new data visualization tool rolled
out with BlueCloud Analytics this fall) to help understand what titles are circualting well and to help
inform displays. 

Circulation�Moonshot:�Displays�+�Merchandising

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.24.21
Due Date: 12.31.22

EDI�Collection�Audit�/�Tagging�(Phase�2)�

The project team met on November 15 to finalize training materials for staff to review in the next
month, including an informative slideshow by Collection Development Librarian Marie Mulder and
scenario videos by Katie Mitchell. Though not an official member of the project team, KDL Intern Taylor
Rhoades played an integral role in creating many of these materials. Though details about the project
are abuzz amongst KDL staff, details will not be further publicized to the public at this time.

31

http://www.kdl.org/collections


Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: new due date of 03.31.22

The project team is currently putting the finishing touches on naming standards, creating an attractive
flowchart that illustrates a simple map of the Microsoft Suite, as well as writing procedures for new hire
training and onboarding. Upon rollout, these tools will be utilized to help staff understand and adhere
to the guidelines associated with email groups, SharePoint sites, Planner pages and document sharing
within the organization. At the beginning of the month, the PMO and Project Sponsor Kurt Stevens
approved a deadline extension in order to flex around unavoidable training demands within the
organization. Because Project Lead Elvia Myers requested this change far enough ahead of time and
presented a clear plan for success, this project will not be marked as "At Risk."

Email�Group�Streamline�+�Update

Project Lead: Dhanya Ravi
Status: Complete

Approval Date: 06.22.22
Due Date: new due date of 12.31.22

The online store was successfully launched to the public on November 9, 2022. Since then, more
awesome merchandise has been added to inventory and patron reception has been favorable. With the
holiday gift buying season in full swing, the project team hopes that staff and patrons alike will seize
this unique opportunity to shop for all of their literary-loving loved ones on their list. Customers of
"Shop KDL" are able to browse in either English or Spanish, and for customers with more particular gift
recipients in mind, KDL e-gift cards are also available. Explore for yourself—and support KDL!—by
visiting https://shopkdl.org/.

KDL�Online�Store

Project Lead: Jennifer DeVault + Lulu Brown
Status: At Risk - Timeline and Scope

 

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 12.31.22

The project team met on November 28 to review the delvierables of the proejct and which ones may not
be necessary with the impementation of Culturewise. It is likely this project's timeline will need to be
reevaluated as the scope will have changed. The team will continue to meet to determine which tools
will be the most effective in service training moving forward. 

KDL�Way�Service�Vision�+�Training

The project's first meeting took place on December 1, at which team members began evaluating how
VolunteerHub can be used to establish more  “events” in which volunteers can sign up to participate.

Project Lead: Deb Schultz
Status: On track

Approval Date: 10.26.22
Due Date: 02.28.23

Library�Ambassador�Program�Pilot

Project Lead: Hannah Lewis
Status: On track

Approval Date: 08.17.22
Due Date: 03.31.23

The search for a Customer Relationship Management CRM (software) that works best for KDL has
officially begun! As the team does their research, they are also creating a list of needs and wants as a
"demonstration script," which will be given to sales reps ahead of a demo. Initial discussions with
possible vendors have begun. CRMs currently being researched and considered include Salesforce,
Microsoft Dynamics, Hivebrite, Capsule, Zoho, Nimble, Pipeline CRM, Nutshell and Monday CRM.

Library�Relationship�Management�(CRM)

32

https://shopkdl.org/


Project Lead: Morgan Hanks
Status: Complete

 The PMO is pleased to close out this 2022 Strategic Initiative! This project brought a little fun,
excitement, and consistency to library card sign-up processes at all of the branches, and has helped to
identify areas of interest upon sign up. It has been a blast to see so many branches embracing this
endeavor and sharing the spirit of KDL (Information. Ideas. Excitement!) with friends and patrons.
Special thanks to Morgan Hanks for leading the charge and to the fabulous team members for all of
their hard work: Jaci Cooper, Josh Mosey, Trish Reid, Karen Small, Cody Ketchum, Kate Allen, Kate
McCoy, Josh Bernstein, Kurt Lardie, Craig Buno, Annie Parada, Kelsey Little, Kelaine Mish, Remington
Steed, and Talea Fournier.

Systemwide�WonderKnook�Refresh

Approval Date: 04.27.22
Due Date: 11.15.22

New�Cardholder�Onboarding�(Phase�1)

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster + Abby Black
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: new due date of 03.31.23

Installations continue to slowly roll out, and so far seven custom pieces have been delivered: Rockford
(Krause Memorial), Ada (Amy Van Andel Branch), Wyoming, Caledonia, Comstock Park, Nelson, and
Alto).  Due to vendor constraints with labor and materials, the full schedule for play space installs has
been bumped into the new year, but TMC is working to get mch of it done before 2023. Full installs will
include kitchens, loose parts play tables, and the custom pieces at many of the branches where size is
not a factor.  In the meantime, the maps and coloring books (prizes for visiting 5 play spaces) were
delivered to branches. The team has also rolled out some appropriately playful training videos for staff
to learn from and enjoy, instructing them on how to clean and maintain the pieces, how to hand maps
and prizes out, and to empower them with the play philosophy at KDL. 

33



BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Jennifer German
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

The City of Rockford applied for an ARPA grant from the County and has been awarded $2M toward the
Krause Memorial Branch building expansion project! Lance Werner will meet with Senator Mark
Huizenga to discuss possible state appropriations or grants for Krause Memorial capital improvements
as well.  Director of Engagement Randy Goble and his team have been instrumental in creating many of
the documents needed for the upcoming capital campaign. The Building Expansion Committee is
appreciative of their excellent work and assistance. 

Krause�Memorial�(Rockford)

No update.

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Tyrone�Township

No update.

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Walker�

34



    

 

 

  

• 

• 

• 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 
 

 

 

 

 

35



     

 

      

 

  

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

36



     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37

https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7675237
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3994890
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2461050
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5800191
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6480172
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6799143
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6799143
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C880378
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C880378
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C903156
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C863916
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C880386
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C887754
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C887754
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C645530
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C895952
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C914192
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C863803
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C884882
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C856880
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C878981
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C878970
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C905356
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C645530
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C895952
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C889417
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867278
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C880386
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C866656
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C866656
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C763287
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C885365
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C903156
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8783654
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8781418
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8781418
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2461050
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2468938
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8988735
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8722705
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384649
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8770367
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3041835
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3041835


  

STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 
December 2022 

 

 

 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Branch Outreach & Programming Specialist – Grandville/Byron Full-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Gaines Township Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Krause Memorial Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Comstock Park Full-time 

Shelver – Wyoming Part-time 

Collection Services Assistant – Service Center Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Cascade Part-time 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Courtney DeLongchamp Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids December 12 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Jay DeVita-Krug Shelver – Cascade November 10 

Nicole Seif Shelver – Cascade December 1 

Rebecca Reitemeier Collection Services Assistant – Service Center December 30 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Caleb Perkins 
Branch Librarian – Gaines 
Township 

Branch Librarian – Tyrone 
Township 

November 14 

Cameron Holmes 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Branch Librarian – 
Kelloggsville 

November 21 

Leigh Verburg 
Branch Librarian – 
Comstock Park 

Branch Outreach & 
Programming Specialist – 
Cascade/Caledonia 

November 28 

Abigail Stange 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
– Cascade 

Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

December 1 

Pia Lu 
Assistant Branch Librarian 
Sub 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
East Grand Rapids 

December 5 

Alicia Peckham Shelver – Kentwood 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood 

December 12 

Shelley Roossien 
Accessibility & Inclusion 
Specialist – Service Center 

Regional Manager In-Training 
– Grandville/Byron 

January – April 2023 

38



 
 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(JANUARY) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Amy Bouma Collection Services 25 years 

Ray Mysels Information Technology 24 years 

Kelaine Mish Bookmobile 23 years 

Tammy Schneider Collection Development 23 years 

Margo Bird East Grand Rapids 21 years 

Mark Dunham Krause Memorial 19 years 

Mary Oosterbaan Grandville 15 years 

Katie Zuidema Communications 13 years 

Trevor Zuidema Grandville 12 years 

Faye Harbison Plainfield 11 years 

Clyde Waltenbaugh Spencer Township 9 years 

Sarah Vantassell Comstock Park 8 years 

Morgan Hanks Patron Services 6 years 

Wendy Kuzma Sub Pool 6 years 

Mara Deckinga Wyoming 5 years 

Ashley Geglio Cascade 5 years 

Nanette Zorn Cascade 5 years 

Anna Swanson East Grand Rapids 4 years 

Lisa VanKampen Grandville 4 years 

Stacey Brander Amy Van Andel/Ada 2 years 

Tiha Kabir Sub Pool 2 years 

Mary McCoy Amy Van Andel/Ada 2 years 

Sarah Powers Amy Van Andel/Ada 2 years 

Michelle Trisch Amy Van Andel/Ada 2 years 

Jennifer Bell Plainfield 1 year 

Jessica Davis Wyoming 1 year 

Sarah Fontaine Gaines Township 1 year 

Talea Fournier Cascade 1 year 

Dawn Lewis Sub Pool 1 year 

Rebecca Maupin Amy Van Andel/Ada 1 year 

Rachel McCay Plainfield 1 year 

Jamerson Ries Alto 1 year 

 39



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2022 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  
 
 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 
ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 
PETER  

DYKHUIS 

SHERI 
GILREATH-

WATTS 

 

NICOLE 
LINTEMUTH 

CHARLES 
MYERS 

 

TOM 
NOREEN 

PENNY 
WELLER 

January 20, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

February 17, 2022 X X X X X X* X X 

March 17, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

April 21, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

May 19, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

June 16, 2022 X X X X X X X  

July 21, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

August 18, 2022 X X *X X X X X X 

September 22, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

October 13, 2022         

October 27, 2022 X X X X X X X X 

November 17, 2022 X* X X* X X X  X 

December 15, 2022         

40



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
1 

 
 

 
  

 

POLICY MANUAL 
Section 6 Review December 2022

41



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
2 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

  

42



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
3 

 
 

SECTION 1 
 PERSONNEL. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 

43



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
4 

 
 

PERSONNEL , cont.  
 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red

44

bookmark://JuryLeave/


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
5 

 
 

PERSONNEL , cont.  
 

 
 
 

45



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
6 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.1 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

KDL POLICY 6.1.1 

HARASSMENT  

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

46

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/STATUTE-100/pdf/STATUTE-100-Pg3445.pdf


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
7 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

KDL POLICY 6.1.2 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)  

47

https://www.eeoc.gov/facts/ada18.html
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/PWDCRA10-05_115444_7.pdf


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
8 

 
 

 a more 

48



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
9 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.2 

POSITION AUTHORIZATION 

KDL POLICY 6.2.1 

APPLICATIONS 

KDL POLICY 6.2.1.1 

INTERNSHIPS 

• 

49



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
10 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

KDL POLICY 6.2.2 

INTERVIEW + SELECTION 

• 

• 

• 

  

50



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
11 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.2.3 

INITIAL EMPLOYMENT PERIOD 

  KDL POLICY 6.2.4 

PROMOTIONS 

KDL POLICY 6.2.5 

NEPOTISM 

51



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
12 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.2.6 

“ACTING” CAPACITY 

KDL POLICY 6.2.7 

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

 

52



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
13 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.2.8 

EMPLOYEE TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

  

53



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
14 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.3 

PERSONNEL FILES + EMPLOYEE RECORDS 

KDL POLICY 6.3.1 

ACCESS TO EMPLOYEE FILE INFORMATION 

54

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(sopouj45ylcygv55rz4oo02r))/printDocument.aspx?objName=mcl-act-454-of-2004&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bversion=txt
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(sopouj45ylcygv55rz4oo02r))/printDocument.aspx?objName=mcl-act-454-of-2004&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bversion=txt
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(sopouj45ylcygv55rz4oo02r))/printDocument.aspx?objName=mcl-act-454-of-2004&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bversion=txt


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
15 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.3.2 

CONTINUOUS LENGTH OF SERVICE 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

KDL POLICY 6.3.3 

DISCLOSURE OF EMPLOYEE FILE INFORMATION 

• 

55



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
16 

 
 

• 

 
 

• 

• 

KDL POLICY 6.3.4 

EMPLOYEE REFERENCES 

  

56

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qgogpctccnuwe2dquwszsbk1))/mileg.aspx?page=getobject&amp;objectname=mcl-Act-454-of-2004&amp;query=on
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qgogpctccnuwe2dquwszsbk1))/mileg.aspx?page=getobject&amp;objectname=mcl-Act-454-of-2004&amp;query=on
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qgogpctccnuwe2dquwszsbk1))/mileg.aspx?page=getobject&amp;objectname=mcl-Act-454-of-2004&amp;query=on


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
17 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.3.5 
APPLICANT/EMPLOYEE BACKGROUND VERIFICATION + DRUG SCREENING 

  

57



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
18 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.3.6 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS PRIVACY 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• Require an employee to transmit the SSN to gain access to an internet website or 
computer system network unless the connection is secure, the transmission is encrypted, 
or a password or other authentication devise is required to gain access; 

• Include the SSN in or on any document sent to an individual if the numbers are visible on 
or, without manipulation, from outside of the envelope or packaging; 

• Include the SSN in or on any document or information mailed to an individual, except in 
accordance with the Act or other applicable laws, rules, or regulations; or 

• Unlawfully disclose social security numbers in violation of the Act or other applicable 
laws, rules, and regulations. 

58

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qgogpctccnuwe2dquwszsbk1))/mileg.aspx?page=getobject&amp;objectname=mcl-Act-454-of-2004&amp;query=on
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(qgogpctccnuwe2dquwszsbk1))/mileg.aspx?page=getobject&amp;objectname=mcl-Act-454-of-2004&amp;query=on


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
19 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.4 

COMPENSATION  

KDL POLICY 6.4.1 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

KDL POLICY 6.4.2 

BENEFITS  

59



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
20 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.4.3 

SICK LEAVE  

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

60



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
21 

 
 

  KDL POLICY 6.4.4 

SICK TIME PAYMENT  

• 

• 

• 

• 

KDL POLICY 6.4.5 

DISABILITY LEAVE OF ABSENCE  

61



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
22 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.4.6 

WORKERS’ DISABILITY COMPENSATION SUPPLEMENTAL PAY  

KDL POLICY 6.4.7 

EMERGENCY CLOSING COMPENSATION  

62



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
23 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.5 

WORK WEEK  

63



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
24 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.6 

PROGRESSIVE ACTION POLICY 

KDL POLICY 6.6.1 

COMPLAINT RESOLUTION PROCESS 

1. 

2. 

64



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
25 

 
 

 

3. Nothing contained in this policy is intended to create a just-cause employment relationship 
or to establish a disciplinary policy that precludes the Library from discharging an employee 
at will. 

65



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
26 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.7 

VACATION ELIGIBILITY 

KDL POLICY 6.7.1 

VACATION—PART TIME 

KDL POLICY 6.7.2 

VACATION—CARRY FORWARD 

 

Requests to carry forward vacation leave resulting in an excess of 26 days (208 hours) in 
the employee’s vacation leave bank shall be made in writing to the employee’s supervisor 
and must note the anticipated dates that the excess leave will be used. All carry forward of 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

66



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
27 

 
 

vacation leave must be approved by both the supervisor and the Executive Director. Such carry 
forward leave shall be allowed only for special personal reasons and for no longer than six 
months after the year in which the carry forward was credited. 

 

KDL POLICY 6.7.3 

PAYMENT OF UNUSED LEAVE + PAID TIME OFF (PTO) 

KDL POLICY 6.7.4 

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

a. 

b. 

c. 

67



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
28 

 
 

d. 

e. 

KDL POLICY 6.7.5 

FAMILY + MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) 

A. 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

68

https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/fmla.htm
https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/fmla.htm
https://www.dol.gov/whd/regs/statutes/fmla.htm


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
29 

 
 

B. 

1) 

2) 

3) 
4) 

5) 

C. 

D. 

69



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
30 

 
 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

70



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
31 

 
 

I. 

KDL POLICY 6.7.6 

PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY 

  

71



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
32 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.7.7 

PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITH PAY 

KDL POLICY 6.7.8 

JURY LEAVE 

KDL POLICY 6.7.9 

MILITARY LEAVE 

Formatted: Strikethrough

72

https://www.dol.gov/vets/programs/userra/
https://www.dol.gov/vets/programs/userra/
https://www.dol.gov/vets/programs/userra/


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
33 

 
 

  

73



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
34 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.7.10 

HOLIDAY ACCRUAL + ELIGIBILITY 

• 

• 

• 

74



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
35 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.8 

TRANSPORTATION REIMBURSEMENT 

KDL POLICY 6.8.1 

HONORARIA 

KDL POLICY 6.8.2 
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION/COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION MEMBERSHIPS 

75



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
36 

 
 

• 

• 

• 

  

76



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
37 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.9 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE  

a) 

b) 

c) 

77



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
38 

 
 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

e) 

78



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
39 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.10 

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICY  

 

 

 

 

79



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
40 

 
 

 

 

 

80



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
41 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.11 

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY  

81

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/mcl/pdf/mcl-Act-469-of-1980.pdf


 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
42 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.12 

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION  

82



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
43 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.13 

CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE—BOARD + STAFF  

83



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
44 

 
 

KDL POLICY 6.14 

VOLUNTEERS  

KDL POLICY 6.14.1 

VOLUNTEER BACKGROUND VERIFICATION  

84



 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
45 

 
 

85



Page 1 of 5 

  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 ISSUE ANALYSIS  

  
  
INTRO  
AGENDA ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION: Live Scanning Wands (LSW) Acquisition 
BOARD MEETING DATES: December 15, 2022 (first reading): January 19, 2022(second reading) 
TIMELINE:  Immediate acquisition if approved 
BUDGET LINE ITEM(S): 5977- Technology, Non-Depreciable 
TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: $97,092.00 
  
PURPOSE  
KDL is interested in acquiring 29 Live Scanning Wands which will streamline the item check-in process 
for staff and enable them to do routine scans of items in the stacks to find mis-filed or checked-out 
items.  Additionally, these wands have increased accuracy and functionality compared to the few RFID 
wands we do have, decreasing the amount of double-work staff must perform because of device 
errors. 
 
OVERVIEW/NEEDS/BACKGROUND INFO  
A couple of years ago we purchased 9 RFID wands that must be shared between branches but when 
they proved to be less than satisfactory, it was decided not to purchase any more from that vendor.  
When we published the RFP for new RFID Equipment, we took time to see what improvements had 
been made, if any.  One vendor, FE Technologies, showed up with a very different wand that caught 
our eye. 

KDL recently tested four of FE Technologies’ Live Scanning Wands at the following branches: 
Wyoming, Plainfield, Spencer, and Walker.  This pilot phase lasted for a period of 3 weeks. Overall, 
staff feedback on the wands was very positive and they agreed that the FE wand not only resolves 
multiple problems with the current wands but also expands functionality by adding new capabilities.  

 After this rigorous testing of FE Technologies’ Live Scanning Wands during the pilot phase, we feel 
confident in their functionality and would like to purchase enough for every branch to have at least 
one (2 for branches with higher-volume circulation) and for Service Center use. 

  
  

86



Live Scanning Wands (LSW) Acquisition  
Issue Analysis (continued) 
 

Page 2 of 5 

BENEFITS  
• Improved time-saving benefit checking-in items 
• Ability to scan entire collection regularly to find mis-filed or checked-out items, which improves 

browsability of the stacks, benefitting patrons, and keeps patron accounts and the ILS more 
accurate 

• Improved software interface compared with current wand 
• Batteries are much cheaper ($30.00) compared with current wand ($800.00) 
• Improved scanning accuracy compared with current wand 
• More durable than current wand and replacement parts are easier to acquire 
• Since the FE wands are a better product, KDL feels comfortable purchasing one for each branch, 

eliminating the need for branches to share a single device, something that caused additional 
wear-and-tear in transit and also made it impossible for every branch to fully benefit from 
having one on-hand at all times 
 

  
DISADVANTAGES  
The wand doesn’t appear to have supply chain where we could purchase parts from any supplier other 
than FE Technologies.  To insulate and protect KDL from potential product “sunsetting,” we have asked 
FE to state in writing their strategy for support and maintenance of it.  Their reply is they have not yet 
sunset or stopped supporting a product since they have been in business. 
 
  
COST  
Each wand will cost $3,000.00 plus annual support & maintenance of $268.00 per wand (an annual fee).  
We would like to acquire 29 of them for a total of $97,092.00, including delivery.  Product install is 
complimentary. 
 
 

Product Quantity Price Delivery 
Annual 

Service and 
Maintenance 

Total 

Live Scanning 
Wands 29 $3000.00 $2320.00 $7772.00  $97,092.00 

 
   
IMPLEMENTATION  
Once the wands have been purchased and shipped to KDL, they will be configured jointly by the IT 
department and the Pilot Team with assistance from Rochelle Ball our ILS Coordinator.  Staff cross-
training will be undertaken by those who participated in the pilot process under the guidance of Karen 
Small.  Karen has organized a small group of “power” users to help with deployment, established 
weekly & monthly check-in meetings to help each branch leverage the wand fully.  Ongoing support will 
be provided by FE Technologies, should we have technical issues with the devices. 
 
 
  

87



Live Scanning Wands (LSW) Acquisition  
Issue Analysis (continued) 
 

Page 3 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION  
KDL recommends that the board approve the purchase of 29 Live Scanning Wands from FE 
Technologies for immediate use by branch and Service Center staff.  The quantity breakdown is as 
follows: 
 

KDL Branch or Department Wand Quantity 
Requested 

Alpine Township 1 
Alto 1 
Amy Van Andel 1 
Byron Township 1 
Caledonia Township 1 
Cascade Township 2 
Comstock Park 1 
East Grand Rapids 2 
Englehardt (Lowell) 1 
Gaines Township 1 
Grandville 2 
Kelloggsville 1 
Kentwood 2 
Krause Memorial (Rockford) 1 
Nelson Township 1 
Plainfield Township 2 
Spencer Township 1 
Tyrone Township 1 
Walker 1 
Wyoming 2 
Collection Services Department 1 
IT Department (spare / floater) 1 
Community Engagement Department 1 
Total 29 

 
  
Document History:   

1. First Draft –Amanda Johnston 
2. Revision – Kurt Stevens 
3. Final Draft – Amanda Johnston 

  

88



Live Scanning Wands (LSW) Acquisition  
Issue Analysis (continued) 
 

Page 4 of 5 

 

During the blizzard of November 2022, a staff member at Wyoming emptied the book drop containing 
308 items on Friday evening and placed them on book trucks.  Using the wand, they checked in all  
items in 7 minutes.  Holds were pulled in a few minutes, items were sorted, and the total process was 
completed in less than 30 minutes.  On Saturday, there were 327 items in the bin. The check-in time 
was just under 8 minutes, holds were pulled, and the total process was completed in less than 30 
minutes, leaving these items ready to be shelved.  On Sunday, when the branch reopened, staff were 
all able to cover the public service points and follow a normal daily routine without slagging through 
hours of check-ins beforehand.  

Proposed - FE Technologies Wand  Current - Tech Logic Wand  
• These wands connect directly via Bluetooth to 

the tablet, which has a stronger antenna than 
the current wands. This minimizes the number 
of times they lose connection.   

• These wands have a smaller, weaker antenna 
in the wands themselves and frequently lose 
connectivity.  

• Durability is very good.    
• Staff performed a “drop test” and the wand 

did not break.   
• Battery cap is a standard cap not physically 

fused to the battery. Batteries are easily 
removed and recharged without 
compromising the physical integrity of the 
whole device.  

• Durability is low.  
• Wand handles have separated and are held 

together with book tape after less than 1 year 
of use.  

• Battery lock is attached to the battery. This 
holds the battery in by a flimsy plastic clip that 
easily breaks with daily use and is now held 
together with book tape.  This part is not 
replaceable without buying a new battery.  

• Batteries for this device are generic. They can 
be purchased on Amazon and only cost about 
$30.00 per set. Since batteries are MUCH 
cheaper, back-up batteries are affordable for 
every wand. If a battery dies while the wand is 
being used, a quick swap out of batteries and 
the wand is ready to go without delay.  

• The batteries are specific to the device and 
proprietary. The replacement cost is between 
$700-$800. Due to the high cost of batteries, 
KDL only has one battery per device. If the 
wand dies during the workday, staff must wait 
until the next day for it to recharge to use it 
again.  

Scanning two bays in the collection:  
• Found all 1,182 items in 12 minutes  
• Found 6 items that needed processing  
• Wand stayed connected  

Scanning two bays in the collection:  
• Found 1,150 out of 1,182 items in 16 minutes  
• Found 1 item that needed processing  
• Wand disconnected twice  

Checking 120 different items every day over 3- 
week pilot:  
• Average time is 3 minutes (set-up time and 

connecting to the tablet takes 30 seconds)  

Timed testing was done in June 2021 for a month 
(removal of auto-check in chute): 
• Average time is 11 minutes (set-up time and 

connecting to laptop takes up to 7 minutes)  

DEVICE COMPARISON: 

TIME-SAVING BENEFITS IN ACTION: 

89



Live Scanning Wands (LSW) Acquisition  
Issue Analysis (continued) 
 

Page 5 of 5 

 
• Staff will scan all the carts to be shelved before they go out onto the floor for a second check 

ensuring all items are checked in.  
 

• Staff will scan the Hold Shelf and Branch Displays weekly to ensure that items which are set to 
anything but “hold shelf” or “display” (in transit, on shelf, or missing) will be identified and 
processed.  Currently, this is done manually by staff and items still get missed.  

 
• Each branch will scan their collection a minimum of once per month.  Currently, this is only being 

done at a couple of branches, but not all.  
 

• On busy or short-staffed days, focusing on customers is our priority.  If the book drop gets backed 
up, staff will use the wand to check-in a cart of materials in a few minutes. 

  
• Staff will use the wand to check in items before reopening the branch after being closed for 

weather or after a holiday closing.    
 

 
 

 
  
 

PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS SUMMARY: 

90



RESOLUTION 
Second 2022 Budget Amendment 

 
 
 MEETING INFORMATION 
A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 
at the Kent District Library Service Center, on December 15, 2022 at 4:30 PM. 

The meeting was called to order by_____________________________________. 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 2, Public Acts of 1968, MCL 141.421 et seq., as amended, it is necessary for 
the Board of the Kent District Library to adopt a General Fund Budget supported by the Library’s 
millage levy, and to amend a budget when resources so dictate. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

The Board hereby approves and adopts the General Fund Budget Amendment for 2022 attached here 
to and made a part here of. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by _____________________and 
seconded by ______________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: _______.  The 
following voted nay: _____. The Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on 
the 15th day of December 2022. 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 
of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on 
December 15,  2022, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given 
pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as 
required by said Act. 

Dated:  December 15, 2022 

 

Charles Myers, KDL Board Chair            Sheri Gilreath-Watts, KDL Board Secretary  

91



 
 

KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
2nd 2022 

 BUDGET AMENDMENT – 
 EXPLANATION OF REQUESTED AMENDMENT 

 

The following suggested amendment to the General Fund budget is designed to reflect the 
decrease in overall anticipated revenues for 2022 and decrease in overall expenditures for 2022.  
The budget amendment is proposed to keep KDL within the requirements of the State Budgeting 
Act.  The composition of the proposed budget amendment has been reviewed by the Leadership 
Team and the components of the various items in the proposed amendment were developed 
based upon consultation with KDL managers and reflect changes in operations that have 
occurred after the development of 2022 amended budget from August.  The impact of the 
amendment is to decrease the amount of fund equity that is anticipated to be used in fiscal year 
2022 by $207,111.  Attached to this document is a summary of the proposed changes by budget 
area and below are explanations for some of the more significant items:  
 
1. $400,000 Decrease to Other Income 

This decrease is necessary to reflect the anticipated amount of ERate reimbursements that 
will be received or available for accrual for fiscal year 2022.  This is due to the timing (slow 
payment) of claims by the ERate program. 

2. $400,000 Net Increase to Wages  
This increase is necessary to cover the amount of payroll that will need to be accrued at the 
end of the year.  This is the portion of the payroll that will be paid in January but 13 of the 14 
days in the payroll period are wages earned in December.  

3. $180,000 Decrease to Contractual and Professional Serivces 
The decrease is to reflect the actual costs of software for the year.  Software costs were less 
than anticipated in the IT and PSD departments. 

4. $100,000 Decrease in Maintenance and Utilities 
The decrease is to reflect the actual costs of our Co-Located data facility arrangement for the 
year. 

5. $724,111 Decrease in Capital Outlay 
The decrease in this area reflects the reality that some items budgeted for 2022 will not be 
able to be completed until 2023.  These include the WonderKnook project and IT projects 
related to cataloging technology and hardware and various other upgrade projects.  IT does 
anticipate funding the purchase of wands totaling roughly $100,000 before the end of the 
year with the Board’s approval of that project this evening. 

 

92



8/18/2022 12/15/2022 12/15/2022
REVENUES: Amendment #1 Totals Amendment Change Amendment #1 Totals
Property Taxes 25,043,883                       ‐                                  25,043,883                                        
Penal Fines 550,000                             ‐                                  550,000                                              
Charges for services 35,000                               ‐                                  35,000                                                
Interest Income (340,000)                           ‐                                  (340,000)                                             
Public Donations 275,000                             ‐                                  275,000                                              
Other Revenue 1,374,095                         (400,000)                        974,095                                              
State Sources 924,073                             ‐                                  924,073                                              
Transfers In ‐                                      ‐                                  ‐                                                       

TOTAL REVENUES & 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

                        27,862,051                           (400,000)                                            27,462,051 

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and Wages 13,219,957                       400,000                         13,619,957                                        
Employee Benefits 3,644,066                         ‐                                  3,644,066                                           
Collections ‐ Digital 2,399,083                         ‐                                  2,399,083                                           
Collections ‐ Physical 2,383,793                         ‐                                  2,383,793                                           
Supplies 793,654                             ‐                                  793,654                                              
Contractual and Professional Services 2,049,004                         (180,000)                        1,869,004                                           
Programming and Outreach 425,545                             ‐                                  425,545                                              
Maintenance and Utilities 2,992,939                         (100,000)                        2,892,939                                           
Staff Development 304,746                             (3,000)                            301,746                                              
Board Development 17,000                               ‐                                  17,000                                                
Other Expenditures 956,845                             ‐                                  956,845                                              
Capital Outlay 2,069,263                         (724,111)                        1,345,152                                           
Transfers Out ‐                                      ‐                                  ‐                                                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & 
OTHER FINANCING USES

31,255,895                        (607,111)                          30,648,784                                          

REVENUES OVER 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

(3,393,844)                         207,111                           (3,186,733)                                           

KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY
GENERAL FUND BUDGET AMENDMENT #2

December 15, 2022

93



 
TRUSTEE BOARD ASSIGNMENTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 8, 2022 
 
 

BOARD CHAIR 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Charles R. Myers December 16, 2021 1 year Appointed by Board Motion 

BOARD VICE CHAIR 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Penny Weller December 16, 2021 1 year Appointed by Board Motion 

BOARD TREASURER 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Andrew Erlewein December 21, 2017 5 years Appointed by Board Motion 

BOARD SECRETARY 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Sheri Gilreath-Watts  May 21, 2020 2 years, 7 months Appointed by Board Motion 

 

94



 
TRUSTEE BOARD ASSIGNMENTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 8, 2022 
 
 

KDL ALLIANCE OF FRIENDS  (MEETS BI-MONTHLY) 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Penny Weller December 21, 2016 6 years Appointed by Board Motion 

Shirley Bruursema December 16, 2021 1 year Appointed by Board Motion 

KDL PENSION BOARD   (MEETS QUARTERLY) 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Charles R. Myers January 18, 2001 20 years, 11 months Appointed by Board Motion 

Andrew Erlewein February 19, 2021 1 year, 9 months Appointed by Board Motion 

LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE (LLC) BOARD   (MEETS MONTHLY) 

Trustee Appointment Date Years of Service Notes 

Shirley Bruursema July 21, 1994 28 years, 5 months Appointed by Board Motion 

 

95


	12. 2022 KDL Board Packet Cover Page 
	12.15.2022 Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda - Draft
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	11.17.2022 - Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	November Financials
	Check Register - Board Report (1)
	November Voided Checks
	11.2022 Director's Report for December 2022
	November for December 2022 Monthly Projects Report
	November 2022 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries Dec 2022
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	December 2022


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE-12.2022 
	KDL Policy Manual 06 Personnel 12.2022
	Live Scanning Wands Issue Analysis
	12 December 2022 Packet - Resolution - Second Budget Amendment 
	RESOLUTION
	Second 2022 Budget Amendment

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

	12 December 2022 Packet  Budget Amendment Explanation 
	2022 Budget Amendment #2 - Board Visual
	12 December Packet - Trustee Officer Assignments
	TRUSTEE BOARD ASSIGNMENTS

	12 December Packet - Trustee Board Assignments
	TRUSTEE BOARD ASSIGNMENTS




